MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 72 (CAMPBELL RIVER), HELD IN PERSON AND ELECTRONICALLY AT 7:30 PM, ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023

Present: K. Eddy, Chair; C. Gillis, Vice-Chair; S. Briggs, J. Gladish, D. Hagen, D. Harper, J. McMann, Trustees; G. Manning, Superintendent, P. Cizmic, Associate Superintendent and K. Patrick, Secretary-Treasurer.

Absent: M. Kyle, Associate Superintendent

23-113 Call to order/ Chair's remarks

Board Chair Eddy called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm.

23-114 Superintendent's remarks

Superintendent Manning acknowledged the work of the Finance Department under the leadership of Kevin Patrick, Secretary-Treasurer on the preparation of the audited financial statements.

Manning attended the CUPE Local 723 65th Anniversary event on September 16 and expressed his congratulations to the President and Local for an exceptional event and their work in supporting our students day to day.

He noted the many events scheduled in the district honouring the September 30 Truth and Reconciliation Day. He made special mention of the Laichwiltach Family Life Society for their work in coordinating this event for the past 8 years and their contributions in the community for the past 30 years.

He expressed his appreciation for the many wonderful happenings and the welcome he has received at all sites in the district.

23-115 Approval of the minutes of September 5, 2023

It was proposed by D. Harper, seconded by J. Gladish and CARRIED:

THAT the minutes of the meeting of September 5, 2023 are hereby approved as circulated.

23-116 Additions to the agenda

14G District Principal of Learning Support Services position proposal

23-117 Approval of the agenda

It was proposed by C. Gillis, seconded by D. Hagen and CARRIED:

THAT the agenda is hereby approved as amended.

23-118 Report from the September 26, 2023 Confidential Board Meeting

Vice-Chair Gillis reported general statements of matters discussed in the Board's Confidential Meeting, and in accordance with Section 72(3) of the School Act, reports the following:

- 1. Teaching, administrative and support staff changes;
- 2. Property, legal and financial issues.

23-119 Greenways School Programming Report 2022/2023

The submitted report outlines the work that Greenways Land Trust is doing with our schools to support learning and the natural environment.

23-120 Presentation of Audited Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2023

Cory Vanderhorst of MNP, LLP reviewed the highlights of the financial statements and expressed appreciation to Secretary-Treasurer Patrick and the finance department for their support in completing the audit. Secretary-Treasurer Patrick thanked Mr. Vanderhorst and MNP for their work and acknowledged the staff of the district's finance department.

23-121 Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis, as at June 30, 2023

Secretary-Treasurer Patrick reviewed the Financial Statements, highlighting an overall operating surplus increase of \$55,000. Members of the board addressed the financial statements and the programs in place to support families as well as student enrolment numbers.

23-122 Recommendation from Audit Committee

It was proposed by S. Briggs, seconded by J. Gladish and **CARRIED**:

THAT the Audited Financial Statement for the term ending June 30, 2023, which includes the reserve transfers, be adopted as presented by Auditor Cory Vanderhorst from the firm of MNP, LLP.

23-123 Recommendation for Extension of Auditors' Contract

It was proposed by S. Briggs, seconded by C. Gillis and CARRIED

THAT the Board recommends the extension of the Auditor MNP LLP's contract for an additional three-year term.

23-124 Maintenance and Operations summer project update

Director of Operations, Jason Decksheimer reviewed the accomplishments of the operations, maintenance and custodial crews over the summer. He outlined some of the projects completed, which included repair and maintenance of floors and ventilation systems, painting, carpentry, custodial work and grounds maintenance. Board Chair Eddy thanked Decksheimer for his presentation and for the incredible work and attitudes of his team.

23-125 Capital Plan Response Letter & Bylaw No. 23/24-CPSD72-02

Bylaw 23/24-CPSD72-01, passed in the Spring, is amended (CPSD72-02) to include additional items such as Feeding Futures equipment, an electric bus supplement and a charging station. These items will be realized through additional grants, not through additional budgeted expenses.

It was proposed by J McMann, seconded by D Hagen and CARRIED

THAT the Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD72-02 for projects identified in the September 15, 2023 Capital Plan response letter from the Ministry of Education and Child Care be given all three readings at this meeting.

It was proposed by D Hagen seconded by C Gillis and CARRIED

THAT the Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD72-02 for projects identified in the September 15, 2023 Capital Plan response letter from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is hereby read for the first time.

It was proposed by J Gladish, seconded by J McMann and CARRIED

THAT the Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD72-02 for projects identified in the September 15, 2023 Capital Plan response letter from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is hereby read for the second time.

It was proposed by D Harper, seconded by J McMann and CARRIED

THAT the Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD72-02 for projects identified in the September 15, 2023 Capital Plan response letter from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is hereby read for the third time, passed, and adopted.

23-126 Minor Capital Plan Submission 24/25

Secretary-Treasurer Patrick noted that the amount of funding for these programs has changed. The submission includes 11 proposed projects.

It was proposed by D Harper, seconded by C Gillis and CARRIED

THAT the Board approve the 2024/2025 Minor Capital Plan submission as outlined in the summary provided by Secretary-Treasurer Patrick.

23-127 Finance Warrant No. 10; April 30, 2023

It was proposed by D Hagen, seconded by S Briggs and CARRIED

THAT the Finance Warrant No. 10, dated April 30, 2023, be accepted as presented.

23-128 Finance Warrant No. 11; May 31, 2023

It was proposed by J Gladish, seconded by C Gillis and CARRIED

THAT Finance Warrant No. 11, dated May 31, 2023, be accepted as presented.

23-129 Finance Warrant No. 12; June 30, 2023

It was proposed by Trustee Briggs, seconded by Trustee Hagen and CARRIED

THAT Finance Warrant No. 12, dated June 30, 2023, be accepted as presented.

23-130 Proposal for District Principal, Learning Support Services

Superintendent Manning shared that the number of students with designations in the district has risen dramatically, resulting in the need to provided increased services by the Learning Support Services department. The proposed position will assist the Director, Learning Support Services in scheduling and meeting the increased needs and demands for service.

Secretary-Treasurer Patrick outlined the funding structure for the proposed position, which will cost approximately \$180,000. A previously approved District Principal of Childcare increase wasn't needed and allows for \$30,000 to be reallocated to this position, with an additional \$150,000, to be realized from the increase in special needs category funding from the Ministry.

It was proposed by D Hagen, seconded by C Gillis and CARRIED

THAT the expenditure of \$150,000 from the Board's surplus operating revenues be allocated to the realization of the position of District Principal, Learning Support Services.

23-131 Audit Conversation Report

Board Chair Eddy reported her conversation with Auditor Tina He from MNP, LLP.

23-132 DPAC Committee Report

Trustee McMann noted her attendance at the first DPAC meeting of the school years. Concerns around bullying were expressed and members of DPAC are looking at ways of bringing information to the broader community. DPAC is working on communicating more effectively with individual school PACs.

23-133 News article re Metro Vancouver teachers on ChatGPT & AI

Trustee Gladish referenced an article circulated to the board. During a brief discussion, board members provided information on their understanding of this app and its potential impact in an educational setting.

It was proposed by J Gladish, seconded by C Gillis and CARRIED

THAT SD72's senior staff begin a process of exploring ChatGPT and AI, and report back to the Board on its potential uses and misuses.

23-134 Questions from anyone present on agenda items for this meeting:

Question 1 - Debra Coombes, President, CRDTA asked why the budget amendment relative to the new position of District Principal, Learning Support Services was not on the agenda. She expressed concern as to this position's impact, on schools, dependent upon hiring decision.

Superintendent Manning advised that the matter was discussed in-camera and the decision made to bring it forward to the public meeting for approval, to support moving forward with posting and hiring for the position.

23-135 Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 8:35 pm

Kat Eddy, Chair. KWP:lm

September 26, 2023

Kevin Patrick, Secretary-Treasurer.